



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF COACHELLA

AND

TEAMSTERS LOCAL 1932 UNION

CONFIDENTIAL MIDDLE-MANAGEMENT

BARGAINING UNIT

FOR THE PERIOD OF

JULY 1, 2019 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2021

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF COACHELLA AND

TEAMSTERS LOCAL 1932 CONFIDENTIAL MID-MANAGEMENT EMPLOYEES

JULY 1, 2019 TO JUNE 30, 2021

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAG	E
ARTICLE 1 – PREAMBLE1	
SECTION 1. INTENT1	
SECTION 2. RECOGNITION OF UNION1	
ARTICLE 2 – MANAGEMENT RIGHTS2	
ARTICLE 3 – SALARIES	
SECTION 1. BASE SALARY AND CLASS TITLES3	
SECTION 2. SALARY ADVANCEMENTS WITHIN BASE PAY RANGE3	
SECTION 3. STEP ADVANCEMENT4	
SECTION 4. PROMOTION4	
SECTION 5. RECLASSIFICATION4	
SECTION 6. DEMOTION5	
SECTION 7. METHODS OF COMPENSATION5	
SECTION 8. PROBATIONARY PERIOD5	
ARTICLE 4 – MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS6	
SECTION 1. ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE6	
SECTION 2. CITY VEHICLE6	
SECTION 3. PERSONNEL RULES6	
SECTION 4. WORK SCHEDULE6	
SECTION 5. BILINGUAL PAY	
ARTICLE 5- EMPLOYEE BENEFITS7	
SECTION 1. EMPLOYEE INSURANCE7	
SECTION 2. RETIREMENT8	
SECTION 3. SICK LEAVE8	
SECTION 4. BEREAVEMENT LEAVE10	
SECTION 5. STATE DISABILITY INSURANCE10)
SECTION 6. HOLIDAYS10	
SECTION 7. JURY DUTY11	
SECTION 8. VACATION11	
SECTION 9. EDUCATION REIMBURSEMENT12	
SECTION 10. SAFETY EQUIPMENT12	
SECTION 11. MEDICAL FLEX PLAN13	3

TABLE OF CONTENTS CONTINUED

	PAGE
ARTICLE 6 – GENERAL PROVISIONS	13
SECTION 1. NONDISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY SECTION 2. LAYOFFS AND REDUCTIONS IN FORCE	
ARTICLE 7 – SECURITY PROVISIONS	15
SECTION 1. DUES CHECK OFFSECTION 2. MAINTENANCE OF MEMBERSHIPSECTION 3. CHANGES IN COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS	15
ARTICLE 8 – EMPLOYEE/EMPLOYER RELATIONS	16
SECTION 1. LABOR/MANAGEMENT COOPERATION COMMITTEE. SECTION 2. STEWARDSSECTION 3. GRIEVANCESSECTION 4. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	16
ARTICLE 9- CONTRACTING	18
ARTICLE 10 - TEMPORARY EMPLOYEES	18
ARTICLE 11 - EFFECTIVE DATES	18
SECTION 1. EFFECTIVE DATESECTION 2. SEPARABILITY	
SIGNATURE PAGE	21
SIDE LETTER AGREEMENT	23
APPENDIX A	
APPENDIX B	

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF COACHELLA AND TEAMSTERS LOCAL 1932 CONFIDENTIAL MID-MANAGEMENT EMPLOYEES

JULY 1, 2019 TO JUNE 30, 2021

ARTICLE 1 – PREAMBLE

SECTION 1. <u>INTENT</u>

It is the intent and purpose of the City of Coachella and Teamsters Local 1932, representing the employees of the Confidential Mid-Management group, that this Memorandum of Understanding ("Agreement") shall set forth rules of pay, hours of work, and other terms and conditions of employment to be observed by both parties. This Agreement has been developed in the interest of promoting and improving employee relations between the City of Coachella, California, hereinafter referred to as the City, and Teamsters Local 1932, hereinafter referred to as "the Union or Union". Each section of this Agreement shall be considered in its entirety and subsections shall be considered only in the context of sections as a whole.

SECTION 2. RECOGNITION OF UNION

The City of Coachella acknowledges Teamsters Local 1932 ("Teamsters Local 1932") as the sole and exclusive bargaining representative for the following unit:

- A. INCLUDED: All permanent full-time employees in the classified service of the City, including but not limited to those classifications listed in Appendix A to this Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") as well as all permanent full-time employees who are not within the classified service performing work within the scope of the job descriptions of employees in the classified service of the City.
- B. EXCLUDED: All temporary employees as defined in and limited by Article 10 of this Agreement, part-time employees, probationary, and all management personnel.
- C. When the City creates a new job classification, the City shall give written notice (letter, email, FAX) to Teamsters Local 1932 of the bargaining unit assignment, if any, of such classification and the pay range of the classification. Teamsters Local 1932 shall have ten (10) calendar days after mailing of such notice to contest the City's assignment of the newly created classification to another bargaining unit. If Teamsters Local 1932 timely contests the assignment of the newly created classification, the parties shall meet to make an effort to reach agreement within ten (10) calendar days on the bargaining unit

assignment for the classification. If no agreement within the prescribed timeframe, the City's determination will be final.

ARTICLE 2 - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

Teamsters Local 1932 recognizes that the City has the authority to manage and direct, on behalf of the public, all operations and activities of the City to the full extent authorized by law.

- A. The City retains the exclusive right to manage and direct City services, the performance of and the work force performing such services. The City retains all of its exclusive management rights, which include, but are not limited to:
 - determine the mission of its constituent departments, commission, boards and issues of public policy;
 - set standards and levels of service:
 - determine the procedures and standards of selection for employment and promotions;
 - 4. direct its employees;
 - 5. establish and enforce dress and grooming standards;
 - determine the methods and means to relieve its employees from duty because of lack of work or other lawful reasons:
 - 7. maintain the efficiency of governmental operations;
 - determine the methods, means and numbers of kinds of personnel by which government operations are to be conducted;
 - 9. determine the content and intent of job classifications;
 - 10. determine methods of financing;
 - determine style and/or type of City-issued wearing apparel, equipment or technology to be used;
 - 12. determine and/or change the facilities, methods, technology, means, organization structure and site and composition of the work force and allocate and assign work by which the City operations are to be conducted;

- determine and change the number of locations, relocations and types of operations, processes and materials to be used in carrying out all City functions including, but not limited to, the right to contract for or subcontract any work or operations of the City;
- assign work to and schedule employees in accordance with requirements as determined by the City and to establish and change work schedules and assignments upon reasonable notice;
- 15. establish and modify productivity and performance programs and standards;
- for good cause, to discharge, suspend, demote, reprimand, withhold salary and benefits or otherwise discipline employees in accordance with applicable law;
- establish employee performance standards including, but not limited to, quality and quantity standards and to require compliance therewith; take all necessary actions to carry out its mission in emergencies;
- exercise complete control and discretion over its organization and the technology or performing its work; and
- 19. establish reasonable work and safety rules and regulations in order to maintain the efficiency of City services.
- B. The exercise by the City through its Council and management representatives, City Manager, Department Directors and Executives, of its management rights shall not in any way, directly or indirectly, be subject to the grievance procedure.

ARTICLE 3 – SALARIES

SECTION 1. BASE SALARY AND CLASS TITLES

The pay for employees covered by this Agreement for the period of July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2021 is set forth in Appendix A. Appendix B reflects a four percent (4%) cost of living adjustment effective July 1, 2019. Appendix C reflects a four percent (4%) cost of living adjustment effective July 1, 2020.

SECTION 2. SALARY ADVANCEMENTS WITHIN BASE PAY RANGE

Salary ranges are established to provide fair compensation to each position covered by this Agreement. Initial appointments shall be made at the minimum step within the approved pay range. The City Manager may approve a higher starting step if the best interests of the City so require.

SECTION 3. STEP ADVANCEMENT

- A. Salary advancement within each class shall not be automatic but shall be based upon merit and fitness. All salary increases shall be recommended by the Department Head and approved by the City Manager. Merit increases shall be effective on the employee's anniversary date.
- B. Upon successful and satisfactory completion of six (6) months of service, an eligible employee may be advanced one step within his/her range and yearly thereafter until the maximum pay rate within the range is reached.
- C. Merit increases will be provided for eligible employees based on performance evaluation conducted on employee's service anniversary date and as outlined in this MOU.
- D. The City implemented a performance step recognizing outstanding performance on January 1, 2012. An employee's advancement to the performance step is based on his/her achievement, over the course of the performance appraisal period following his/her anniversary date, of the goals and objectives established and agreed upon between the employee and his/her supervisor and approved by the Director and City Manager. The Labor/Management Committee adopted the appraisal tool criteria for what constitutes outstanding service and goals and objectives in order to be eligible for the performance step on April 1, 2012.

SECTION 4. PROMOTION

- An employee who is promoted to a position in a class with a higher salary rate shall be entitled to be placed on the lowest step in the new range which exceeds the employee's present rate of pay by at least five percent (5%);
- B. Upon successful completion of six (6) months of service in the new class, an employee placed in Step A of the salary schedule may be advanced one step within his/her range and yearly thereafter until the maximum pay rate within the range is reached.
- C. Any employee appointed by the City Manager or department head to an acting higher position on a temporary or interim basis shall receive pay pursuant to Section 4.A. of this Article.

SECTION 5. RECLASSIFICATION

An employee who is reclassified to a position in a class with a higher salary range shall be entitled to the lowest step in the higher salary range which exceeds the employee's present rate of pay by a minimum of five percent (5%) of the employee's base rate of pay.

SECTION 6. DEMOTION

When an employee is demoted, the employee's base pay rate shall be set at the step in the lower pay range which provides the smallest decrease in pay if the action is not for cause. If the demotion is for cause the employee's pay rate shall be set at any appropriate step rate in the lower range that is less than the employee's existing salary as determined by the City Manager.

SECTION 7. METHODS OF COMPENSATION

Compensation shall be determined on a monthly basis. Employees shall be paid on a biweekly basis unless otherwise specified in the Coachella Municipal Code.

SECTION 8. PROBATIONARY PERIOD

- A. The probationary period shall be regarded as part of the testing process and shall be utilized for closely observing the employee's work, for securing the most effective adjustment of a new employee to his or her position assignment, and for the evaluation of continued employment of the probationary employee.
 - Probationary employees remain "at will" and may be terminated without cause, right of appeal, or other so-called Skelly rights until the successful completion of the probationary period.
- B. Appointments, including promotional appointments, shall be tentative and subject to a probationary period beginning with the employee's appointment to a regular position. The probationary period shall be for a six (6) month period of actual service. The City may, at its discretion, extend the probationary period an additional six (6) months. Probationary employees who missed regularly assigned work may have the probationary period extended by the equivalent amount of time of the employee's absence.
- C. If the service of the probationary employee has been deemed satisfactory, the Department Head shall complete a performance evaluation no more than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of an employee's probationary period recommending regular status. All actions changing an employee's status from probationary to regular shall not be made nor become effective until approved by Human Resources.
- D. Each probationary employee shall have his or her performance evaluated prior to the end of the probationary period of service or at more frequent intervals when deemed necessary by the City. Such evaluations shall be reported in writing and in a form approved by Human Resources. Upon successful completion of the probationary period the employee may pass by receiving a satisfactory rating or higher. Failure to obtain a satisfactory rating typically results in dismissal of the employee; however, the City may extend probation at its discretion. Dismissal as to a promoted position means dismissal

only from the promoted position; following said dismissal, the employee shall be reassigned back to the position assigned prior to promotion.

- E. During the probationary period, an employee may be suspended, demoted, or dismissed at any time and for any reason by the City. Notification of suspension, demotion, or dismissal in writing shall be served on the probationary employee and a copy filed with Human Resources.
- F. The City will notify Teamsters Local 1932 within five (5) working days of any extension of a probationary period.

ARTICLE 4 – MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

SECTION 1. ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE

Employees shall be granted ten (10) days administrative leave per year on July 1. Employees hired between July 2 – June 30 of any fiscal year shall accrue 3.85 hours bi-weekly of administrative leave for the fiscal year they were hired. Use of administrative leave is subject to department head and/or City Manager approval. Unused administrative leave may be accrued up to a maximum of two hundred fifty (250) hours. Upon request, employees shall be paid for up to one half (1/2) of their accrued administrative leave. Payment for accrued administrative leave shall be made once a year. Payment shall be made at the employee's regular rate of pay at the time the accrued administrative leave is redeemed.

SECTION 2. CITY VEHICLE

Employees may be provided City vehicles for use in the performance of their job duties. Employees who are required to use their automobiles on official City business shall be reimbursed at the current Internal Revenue Service standard mileage rate.

SECTION 3. PERSONNEL RULES

Employees covered by this Agreement are subject to the City's Personnel Rules and Regulations. In the event of a conflict between this Agreement and the Personnel Rules and Regulations the terms of this Agreement shall prevail.

SECTION 4. WORK SCHEDULE

A. The City converted to a 4/10 work schedule on July 1, 2012, whereby employees work ten (10) hours per day Monday through Thursday, between the hours of 5:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m.

- B. Holidays, floating holidays and vacation hours will be computed at the rate of ten (10) hours per day.
- C. Departments may require alternative work schedules for some employees to meet the demands of operations, including weekends and evenings. Change in work schedule requires a fourteen (14) day notice. Affected employees have the right to waive the fourteen (14) day notice requirement.

SECTION 5. BILINGUAL PAY

Additional compensation in the amount of twenty-five dollars (\$25.00) per pay period for employees who use their conversational Spanish skills when interacting with the public on a more limited basis. To be eligible to receive bilingual pay, an employee must be serving in an eligible classification and be certified by the City to receive such pay. The City may periodically require evaluation of incumbents receiving bilingual pay.

ARTICLE 5 – EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

SECTION 1. EMPLOYEE INSURANCE

A. Health and Medical Insurance

- For employees choosing coverage, the City will pay up to the median cost of the CalPERS medical premium for single, two-party, and family coverage for employees, spouses, domestic partners and dependents.
- Employees with duplicate health coverage may choose to cash in five hundred twenty-five dollars (\$525.00). An employee must submit a written request for payment and annual evidence of duplicate coverage.

B. Optical and Dental

- The City will pay full premiums for both optical and dental benefits for employees and dependents.
- Employees may decline vision coverage, thereby waiving such coverage and shall receive in cash the fees which would have been paid in the form of such insurance premiums.

C. Life Insurance

The City will provide a one-hundred thousand (\$100,000) policy for each employee.

D. <u>Long Term and Short-Term Disability Insurance</u>

The City shall pay the premiums to cover employees under a long- and short-term disability insurance plan.

SECTION 2. RETIREMENT

- A. The City contracts with the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS). Effective October 20, 2012, the City adopted a two-tier retirement plan:
 - Employees hired prior to October 20, 2012 are covered under the 3% @ 60 CalPERS Plan and will be on the "One Year Final Compensation" benefit plan.
 - Employees hired on or after October 20, 2012 are covered under the 2% @ 60 CalPERS
 Plan and will be on the "Three Year Final Compensation" benefit plan.
 - Effective January 1, 2013, new employees are covered under the 2% @ 62 CalPERS plan and will be on the "Three Year Final Compensation" benefit plan.
- B. Effective July 1, 2012, employees agreed to pay five percent (5%) of the eight percent (8%) member contribution toward this plan. Effective July 1, 2013, employees agreed to pay the remaining three percent (3%) of the eight percent (8%) member contribution. Effective July 1, 2019, employees agree to pay an additional one percent (1%) member contribution towards their CalPERS pension for each year of the contract.
- C. The City agrees to pay two dollars (\$2.00) per month per employee for their participation in the 1959 PERS Survivor's Benefit Program (Government Code sections 21570 et seq.).
- D. The City currently contributes the following amount towards an eligible retiree's CalPERS medical premium:

2019 - \$229.50 per month

2020 - \$243.00 per month

2021 - \$256.50 per month

SECTION 3. SICK LEAVE

- A. Sick leave shall be earned at the rate of ten (10) hours per month.
- B. The maximum accrual of sick leave shall be two hundred (200) days, two thousand (2,000) hours.
- C. Cash Out: <u>Termination of Employment</u>

1. Retirement: fifty percent (50%) accrued sick leave

2. Layoff: fifty percent (50%) accrued sick leave

3. Discharged: None

D. Cash Out: Annual

Employees have the option of accruing all of their yearly sick leave or being paid for it in accordance with the following provisions:

- Provisions for the payment of unused sick leave shall be based on a fiscal year basis (July 1 to June 30).
- Employees may cash in or convert to vacation one half (1/2) of their annual unused sick leave hours at the end of each fiscal year. If neither of these options is exercised, the unused sick leave will be accrued.
- The cash-in of sick leave shall be based on an employee's hourly rate as of June 30
 except for retirement or layoff.

E. <u>Use of Sick Leave</u>

Sick leave shall be used only in case of sickness or disability of an employee or for an illness in the employee's immediate family. Misuse of sick leave shall be grounds for disciplinary action.

F. Notification of Sickness

- To receive compensation while absent on sick leave an employee must notify his/her immediate supervisor in the manner provided for in departmental rules and regulations.
- When a sick leave absence is for more than three (3) consecutive working days, an employee's illness must be verified in a written statement from an attending physician or a personal affidavit stating the fact of the medical necessity for the absence. Employees shall furnish any other proof of sickness reasonably required by the department head or the City Manager.

G. Return From Sick Leave

Upon return from sick leave an employee may be required by his/her department head to report for an examination by a City selected medical examiner to determine his/her fitness for duty.

H. Family Sick Leave

- In case of illness of a member of the employee's immediate family, the employee, upon proper notice, may take up to one-half of his/her annual sick leave accrual per year for family sick leave.
- Immediate family for the purpose of this section shall be defined as spouse, mother, mother-in-law, father, father-in-law, sister, sister-in-law brother, brother-in-law, child, stepchild or guardian, stepfather, stepmother, registered domestic partner, grandparents or grandchildren.
- 3. Family sick leave shall be deducted from the employee's accumulated sick leave.

SECTION 4. BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

- A. In case of a death in the employee's immediate family the employee, upon submission of proper notice, may take up to three (3) consecutive workdays of bereavement leave.
- B. Immediate family for the purpose of this section shall be defined as spouse, mother, mother-in-law, father, father-in-law, sister, sister-in-law brother, brother-in-law, child, stepchild or guardian, stepfather, stepmother, registered domestic partner, grandparents or grandchildren.

SECTION 5. STATE DISABILITY INSURANCE

Members of the Mid-Management Unit shall be covered by State Disability Insurance and the required amount shall be withheld from each employee's paychecks to pay this benefit as required by state law.

SECTION 6. HOLIDAYS

- A. The following days shall be considered holidays with pay.
 - 1. New Year's Eve
 - 2. New Year's Day
 - 3. Martin Luther King's Birthday
 - 4. Presidents' Day
 - 5. Cesar Chavez's Birthday
 - 6. Memorial Day
 - 7. Independence Day

- 8. Labor Day
- 9. Veterans' Day
- Thanksgiving Day
- 11. Christmas Eve
- 12. Christmas Day
- B. If a holiday falls on a Friday or Saturday, it will be observed on the preceding Thursday. If a holiday falls on a Sunday, it will be observed on the following Monday.

C. Floating Holidays

In lieu of three (3) former holidays (Lincoln's Birthday, Admission Day and Day After Thanksgiving), three (3) floating holidays will accrue to employees on July 1 each year. Floating holidays earned in a fiscal year and unused as of June 30 shall either be cashed out or converted to vacation and carried over to the next fiscal year at the employee's option.

SECTION 7. JURY DUTY

An employee who is summoned for attendance to any court for jury duty during his/her normal working hours shall be deemed to be on duty and there shall be no loss of salary. Any jury fees received by an employee shall be submitted to the Finance Department. Compensation for mileage or subsistence allowances while serving on a jury are not considered as a fee and shall be retained by the employee.

Any employee who is called as a witness arising out of and in the course of his/her City employment shall be deemed to be on duty and there shall be no loss of salary. Any witness fees received by an employee shall be submitted to the Finance Department, together with any mileage received by the employee if he/she uses City transportation. An employee absent as a witness in a private matter shall not be entitled to be paid during such absence.

Nothing herein shall be deemed to affect the right of the City Manager to discuss with an employee the possibility and practicability of seeking an exemption or excuse from jury duty or as a witness as may legally be available, when absence by the employee would create undue hardship for the employee or his/her department, or would materially affect required service to the public.

SECTION 8. VACATION

- A. Vacation shall be earned as follows:
 - 1. 1st year through 3rd year of service eleven (11) days per year.

- 2. 4th year through 10th year of service sixteen (16) days per year.
- 3. 11th year through 15th year of service twenty (20) days per year.
- 4. 16th year through 20th year of service twenty-five (25) days per year.
- 5. Over twenty (20) years of service thirty (30) days per year.
- B. Vacation schedules must be submitted to the Department head for approval.
- C. Vacation may be accrued up to the amount earned over the preceding twenty-four (24) months provided; however, that vacation accrued in excess of three hundred twenty (320) hours is subject to the approval of the City Manager.

Once this two year maximum amount has been accrued the employee shall accrue no further vacation until the accrued level has been reduced to below the maximum. The employee will then again begin accruing but at no time shall the employee's level of accrued vacation exceed the amount of vacation that the employee accrues in two years.

- D. Subject to filing an official request, an employee may cash in up to eighty (80) hours of vacation annually (based on a fiscal year: July 1 June 30).
- E. Prior to an employee taking of vacation time, he/she may request and, upon such approval, shall receive a payroll check for the wages which normally would be earned during the duration of the employee's vacation.

SECTION 9. EDUCATION REIMBURSEMENT

The City will reimburse employees fifty percent (50%) of tuition for continuing education in non-job-related courses and one hundred percent (100%) of tuition for classes in a job related courses. Payment is predicated on an employee receiving a 2.0 grade or better. The City will also reimburse employees one hundred percent (100%) of the cost of job-related: college preparatory classes, certifications, professional licensure preparatory classes, vehicle or equipment certification and/or Class A or B license fees, and renewal fees on such certifications and/or licenses. The cost to the City for the reimbursements shall not exceed five thousand (\$5,000) per employee for a twelve (12) month period. Requests for reimbursements must be submitted and approved prior to enrolling in a course or applying for a certificate, license or renewal. Newly hired employees serving a probationary period are not eligible for this benefit.

SECTION 10. SAFETY EQUIPMENT

Employees covered by this Agreement whose duties require them to perform work which exposes their feet to potential harm or danger shall be required to wear safety shoes during working hours. The City will determine the specifications for the shoes and will contribute up to two-hundred fifty (\$250.00) dollars, plus sales tax, towards the purchase. If an employee chooses a shoe whose cost is above what the City contributes, it shall be the responsibility of the

employee to pay the difference. The City shall provide one (1) pair of shoes every July, based upon the employee's demonstration to their supervisor that the shoes they wish to replace need to be replaced. Should an employee's work render the shoes ineffective for purposes of foot safety in a period of less than twelve (12) months, that employee must demonstrate to their supervisor or Department Head that the shoes need to be replaced before a second pair will be provided.

SECTION 11. MEDICAL FLEX PLAN

The City will provide and administer an "employee benefits plan" for medical expenses pursuant to section 125 of the Internal Revenue Service Code. Participation in the plan is voluntary. The annual deduction is determined by the Internal Revenue Service.

ARTICLE 6 – GENERAL PROVISIONS

SECTION 1. NONDISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

- A. The City and Teamsters Local 1932 agree that both parties have a crucial role in the development and implementation of equal employment opportunities. Both parties mutually accept responsibility for carrying out these provisions.
- B. The parties agree to cooperate actively and positively supporting the concept of equal opportunity to achieve the highest potential and productivity in employment situations. The City agrees to provide encouragement and assistance opportunities so that all employees may utilize their abilities to the fullest extent.
- C. The City will exert every effort possible to encourage upward mobility of employees now at lower grade levels so that they may work at their fullest potential.
- D. The provisions of this Agreement shall be applied equally to all employees subject to the Agreement without regard to sex (including pregnancy, gender identity, gender expression, and sexual orientation), marital status, race, color, religion, national origin, mental disability, physical disability, age (40 and above), medical condition (cancer or genetic characteristic), or any other protected class under applicable law.

SECTION 2. LAYOFFS & REDUCTIONS IN FORCE

A. Purpose for Layoffs

For reasons of economy, efficiency, or in the interest or mandate of the public, reductions of City services may be required. Whenever, in the judgment of the City Council, it

becomes necessary, the City Council may eliminate positions, and the employees holding such positions may be laid off.

B. Seniority and Order of Layoff

- Seniority shall be by date of first employment in the employee's current classification. Layoffs shall be in reverse seniority order in the affected classification, with junior employees being laid off before senior employees. No full-time permanent employee may be laid off while any temporary, probationary or part-time employees, or any employees with less seniority, are retained in the affected classification. A senior employee who is to be laid off shall have the right to bump a junior employee in a lower paying classification provided that the senior employee shall have previously established permanent status in the position into which she/he wishes to bump.
- If an employee exercises bumping rights to a lower classification, said employee shall have the right to be the next person promoted to the classification from which he or she was laid off for a period of 24 months from the effective date of the lay-off action.
- C. The duties performed by an employee laid off may be reassigned to other employees already working who hold positions in appropriate classes.

D. Reinstatement List and Recall Rights

- 1. Full-time permanent employees of the City who are laid off from the competitive service in good standing shall have their names placed on a recall list for a period not to exceed two (2) years from date of layoff, and shall be eligible for recall for any vacancies within the same position classification held by the employee, provided that the employee meets the minimum qualifications and is able to perform the duties of the job. Laid off employees applying for vacancies in other position classifications shall be given preference provided they meet the minimum qualifications for the position and are able to perform the duties of the job.
- Once recalled, reinstated employees will be restored to the same seniority rights
 and benefits in effect for the employee at time of layoff, unless subsequent
 changes in the MOU have been made in the intervening time regarding a particular
 benefit, in which case the newer MOU language regarding benefit entitlement will
 take precedent.
- After expiration of the two (2) year recall list, laid off employees will be treated the same as internal candidates for employment recruitment purposes only in accordance with the "Recruiting, Hiring and Promotions of Classified Employees" policy for a period of twelve (12) months after approval of this MOU.

E. Payment for Accumulated Leave

The laid-off employee shall have the option of receiving payment for any accumulated vacation leave, compensatory time, or "frozen" sick leave with a cash value in accordance with the provisions of the MOU and respective City policies, at any time during the layoff period. Payment shall be made in one (1) full payment. An employee electing to defer automatic payment of these leave balances by the City must notify the Human Resources Department in writing of their choice. If payment is not selected at the end of the two (2) year period the City will automatically pay the employee the amount to which he or she is entitled. Once an employee elects payment of any balances, the payment will be subject to the provisions applicable for those programs in effect at the time of reinstatement.

F. Severance Pay

The laid-off employee will be provided four (4) weeks of severance pay.

ARTICLE 7 – SECURITY PROVISIONS

SECTION 1. DUES CHECKOFF

Teamsters Local 1932 is authorized to use payroll deductions for collecting employee organizational dues on a monthly basis.

SECTION 2. MAINTENANCE OF MEMBERSHIP

A. Any unit member who is a member of the Teamsters Local 1932 or who has applied for membership may sign and deliver to the Teamsters Local 1932 an assignment authorizing deduction of membership dues, initiation fees, and general assessments in the Teamsters Local 1932. Pursuant to such authorization and notification to the City by Teamsters Local 1932, the City shall deduct the monthly amount certified by Teamsters Local 1932 to be the dues required for the employee's membership in Teamsters Local 1932 from the unit member's regular paycheck.

With respect to all sums deducted by the City pursuant to paragraph A above the City agrees to remit such moneys promptly to Teamsters Local 1932 together with an alphabetical list of employees for whom such deductions have been made.

- B. Teamsters Local 1932 agrees to furnish any information needed by the City to fulfill the provisions of this Article.
- C. In accordance with AB 119, the City shall notify Teamsters Local 1932 when a new employee is hired into the bargaining unit. The City shall provide reasonable paid release

time, which is defined as 30 minutes, for Teamsters Local 1932 to meet with the employee during new-hire orientation for the purposes of discussing membership in the bargaining unit.

D. Teamsters Local 1932 shall indemnify and hold harmless the City, its City Council members, officers, agents, attorneys and employees from any and all claims, demands, suits or other liability and/or expense pertaining to the organizational security provisions of this agreement, the process, or decision of the union.

SECTION 3. CHANGES IN COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS

In the event any other bargaining unit member receives any economic benefit (i.e., salary, insurance, etc.) during the term of this agreement, unit members represented by Teamsters Local 1932 shall receive the equivalent increase. In the event any other bargaining unit member receives any economic benefit and the benefit does not exist in this contract, unit members shall receive the equivalent amount toward the benefit of their choice.

ARTICLE 8 – EMPLOYEE/EMPLOYER RELATIONS

SECTION 1. LABOR/MANAGEMENT COOPERATION COMMITTEE

A Labor/Management Committee shall be established for the following purposes:

- A. To improve communication between representatives of Labor and Management;
- To study and explore ways of eliminating potential problems between the City and its employees;
- C. This Committee is not intended to circumvent, replace or modify the grievance procedure.
- D. The City and Teamsters Local 1932 agree to create a subcommittee to meet and confer as necessary on revisions to City's Personnel Rules.

SECTION 2. STEWARDS

Teamsters Local 1932 may be represented by Stewards and an Alternative Steward. The
Alternative Steward acts only when the Steward is not at work. Teamsters Local 1932 shall
notify the City in writing of the employees selected to act as Stewards and Alternative
Steward, as well as to provide notice if employee representation changes during the term of
this Memorandum of Understanding. Stewards and their Alternative shall, unless performing
steward duties, be and remain at their regular place of work. This provision does not include

any increase in the existing number of stewards or alternates. Not more than one (1) of the designated steward representatives may participate in any special meeting to resolve a problem within the scope of bargaining or grievance hearing at one time, unless authorized by the City Manager.

- The City will provide Teamsters Local 1932 one hundred (100) hours per fiscal year for all steward meetings, trainings, and executive board meetings during working hours. Any unused hours remaining at the end of the fiscal year will not carry over. This release time shall be paid City time. Stewards are required to inform their immediate supervisor of such meetings, trainings, and executive board meetings a minimum of five (5) business days in advance. Supervisors have the discretion to deny attendance to ensure that work locations are adequately covered if necessary.
- In accordance with SB 1085, Teamsters Local 1932 will reimburse the City for all
 compensation paid to the employee for time spent on steward meetings, trainings, and
 executive board meetings. Stewards will record the date and amount of hours spent on such
 activities and submit a record to Human Resources at the end of every month. The City will
 then submit a request for reimbursement to Teamsters Local 1932. Teamsters Local 1932
 will reimburse the City within 30 days of receipt of said request.

SECTION 3. GRIEVANCES

A grievance of a wrong, considered by an employee as grounds for complaint, except in a case of a personnel action arising out of position, classification, pay, demotion, suspension and dismissal. The adjustment of complaints arising therefrom are separately provided.

The most effective accomplishment of the work of the City requires prompt consideration and equitable adjustment of employee grievances. It is the desire of the City to adjust grievances informally, and both supervisors and employees are expected to make every effort to resolve problems as they arise. However, it is recognized that there will be grievances which will be resolved only after a formal appeal and review. Accordingly, the following procedure is established.

SECTION 4. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

A grievance must be presented to the immediate supervisor within seven (7) days of the event giving rise to the grievance or the grievance will be deemed untimely. The immediate supervisor shall make inquiry into the facts and circumstances of the complaint and shall attempt to resolve the matter promptly and fairly.

An employee, if dissatisfied with the decision of the supervisor, may submit the grievance in writing to the Department Head. The Department Head shall make a separate investigation and inform the employee in writing of his/her decision and the reason therefore within seven (7) calendar days after receipt of the employee's grievance.

If the employee is dissatisfied with the Department Head's decision, he/she may request in writing a review by the City Manager within seven (7) calendar days following the receipt of the decision of the Department Head. The City Manager shall make an investigation and conduct such hearings as he/she deems necessary and shall within fifteen (15) calendar days after the receipt of the employee's request for review inform the employee in writing of his/her findings and decision. The decision of the City Manager shall be final.

If a grievance challenges an action of the City Manager taken prior to the time it would reach her/him under this procedure, she/he shall not review the grievance as City Manager. The final step in the procedure shall be reviewed by the City Manager or equivalent official from another local agency who shall discharge the functions normally performed by the City Manager under this procedure.

The City shall make available to the employee or the employee representative a standard grievance form.

ARTICLE 9 – CONTRACTING

In the event the City determines a service and/or program will be contracted out, City agrees that any Request for a Proposal for contracting out a service and/or program will not displace any current employee. The City will agree to meet and confer with Teamsters Local 1932 and give notice as required by law.

ARTICLE 10 – TEMPORARY EMPLOYEES

The City shall have the right to hire temporary employees (casuals) at the appropriate classification as outlined in this MOU as determined by the Department Head. Such employees shall not be covered by this MOU and shall not be employed in excess of one hundred twenty (120) working days within a calendar year. If a temporary employee is employed in excess of one hundred twenty (120) consecutive working days in a calendar year, then that temporary employee will be covered by the MOU and become a regular employee.

ARTICLE 11 – EFFECTIVE DATES

SECTION 1. EFFECTIVE DATE

The provisions of this Agreement shall be effective commencing July 1, 2019, except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, and shall remain in effect until June 30, 2021, or until superseded by another Agreement.

SECTION 2. SEPARABILITY

If any section, subsection, sentence, or clause or phrase of this Agreement is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Agreement. The City and Teamsters Local 1932 hereby declare that they would have enacted this Agreement and each section, subsection, sentence, clause and phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases be declared invalid or unconstitutional.

CONTRACT EXECUTED

	This	day of _	, 2019.
CITY OF NEEDLES			TEAMSTERS LOCAL 1932
1	5		Natalio Harts
Rick Daniels, City Ma	anager		Natalie Harts, Business Agent/Staff Coordinator
			Lathy Beine
*			
		٠,	

SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT

Between Teamsters Local 1932, representing Confidential Mid-Management Employees, and the City of Coachella.

The City of Coachella and the Confidential Mid-Management Employees hereby agree as follows:

 On March 9, 2016, the Interim Sanitary Superintendent position was reclassified to Chief Treatment/Collections System Operator and the salary was Y-rated. As part of the new two-year Memorandum of Understanding, the City agrees to remove the Y-rating from the position.

This Side Letter Agreement is being executed as part of the Memorandum of Understanding effective July 1, 2019.

WE AGREE TO THE ABOVE:

EMPLOYEES	CITY OF COACHELLA	
Date:	Date:	
Natalie Harts	William B. Pattison	
Teamsters Local 1932 Representative	City Manager	

City of Coachella - Salary Schedule Confidential Mid-Management Employees July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2020

							"O" Performance
Position Title	Step	Α	В	С	D	E	Step (5%)
Accounting Manager	h	47.82	50.20	52.71	55.33	58.09	61.01
	m	8,288.80	8,701.33	9,136.40	9,590.53	10,068.93	10,575.07
Grade 37	a	99,465.60	104,416.00	109,636.80	115,086.40	120,827.20	126,900.80
Administrative Assistant	h	28.93	30.38	31.91	33.49	35.17	36.93
	m	5,014.53	5,265.87	5,531.07	5,804.93	6,096.13	6,401.20
Grade 10	a	60,174.40	63,190.40	66,372.80	69,659.20	73,153.60	76,814.40
Assistant to the City	h	47.67	50.06	52.55	55.16	57.93	60.82
Manager	а	8,262.80	8,677.07	9,108.67	9,561.07	10,041.20	10,542.13
Grade 36	m	99,153.60	104,124.80	109,304.00	114,732.80	120,494.40	126,505.60
Associate Planner	h	37.09	38.93	40.87	42.92	45.05	47.30
	m	6,428.93	6,747.87	7,084.13	7,439.47	7,808.67	8,198.67
Grade 32	а	77,147.20	80,974.40	85,009.60	89,273.60	93,704.00	98,384.00
Building Official	h	47.25	49.61	52.08	54.67	57.41	60.28
	m	8,190.00	8,599.07	9,027.20	9,476.13	9,951.07	10,448.53
Grade 25	а	98,280.00	103,188.80	108,326.40	113,713.60	119,412.80	125,382.40
Chief Treatment/ Collections	h	38.41	40.33	42.36	44.47	46.70	49.04
Systems Operator	m	6,657.73	6,990.53	7,342.40	7,708.13	8,094.67	8,500.27
Grade 29	а	79,892.80	83,886.40	88,108.80	92,497.60	97,136.00	102,003.20
Civil Engineering Associate	h	36.56	38.37	40.28	42.31	44.41	46.62
	m	6,337.07	6,650.80	6,981.87	7,333.73	7,697.73	8,080.80
Grade 31	а	76,044.80	79,809.60	83,782.40	88,004.80	92,372.80	96,969.60
Code Compliance Manager	h	47.25	49.61	52.08	54.67	57.41	60.28
	m	8,190.00	8,599.07	9,027.20	9,476.13	9,951.07	10,448.53
Grade 25	а	98,280.00	103,188.80	108,326.40	113,713.60	119,412.80	125,382.40
Community Development	h	31.93	33.52	35.21	36.96	38.82	40.76
Technician	m	5,534.53	5,810.13	6,103.07	6,406.40	6,728.80	7,065.07
Grade 17	а	66,414.40	69,721.60	73,236.80	76,876.80	80,745.60	84,780.80
Community Services	h	28.93	30.38	31.91	33.49	35.17	36.93
Coordinator	m	5,014.53	5,265.87	5,531.07	5,804.93	6,096.13	6,401.20
Grade 10	а	60,174.40	63,190.40	66,372.80	69,659.20	73,153.60	76,814.40
Deputy City Clerk	h	36.02	37.82	39.71	41.69	43.78	45.98
	m	6,243.47	6,555.47	6,883.07	7,226.27	7,588.53	7,969.87
Grade 22	а	74,921.60	78,665.60	82,596.80	86,715.20	91,062.40	95,638.40
Economic Development	h	48.05	50.45	52.97	55.60	58.39	61.31
Manager	m	8,328.67	8,744.67	9,181.47	9,637.33	10,120.93	10,627.07
Grade 38	а	99,944.00	104,936.00	110,177.60	115,648.00	121,451.20	127,524.80
Environmental/Regulatory	h	37.09	38.93	40.87	42.92	45.05	47.30
Programs Manager	m	6,428.93	6,747.87	7,084.13	7,439.47	7,808.67	8,198.67
Grade 32	а	77,147.20	80,974.40	85,009.60	89,273.60	93,704.00	98,384.00

City of Coachella - Salary Schedule Confidential Mid-Management Employees July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2020

							"0"
Position Title	Step	Α	В	С	D	Е	Performance Step (5%)
Executive Assistant	h	31.93	33.52	35.21	36.96	38.82	40.76
	m	5,534.53	5,810.13	6,103.07	6,406.40	6,728.80	7,065.07
Grade 17	а	66,414.40	69,721.60	73,236.80	76,876.80	80,745.60	84,780.80
Finance Services Supervisor	h	36.02	37.82	39.71	41.69	43.78	45.98
	m	6,243.47	6,555.47	6,883.07	7,226.27	7,588.53	7,969.87
Grade 34	а	74,921.60	78,665.60	82,596.80	86,715.20	91,062.40	95,638.40
Grants Manager	h	43.63	45.81	48.10	50.52	53.04	55.69
-	m	7,562.53	7,940.40	8,337.33	8,756.80	9,193.60	9,652.93
Grade 24	а	90,750.40	95,284.80	100,048.00	105,081.60	110,323.20	115,835.20
Information Technology	h	53.67	56.36	59.17	62.11	65.22	68.47
Manager	m	9,302.80	9,769.07	10,256.13	10,765.73	11,304.80	11,868.13
Grade 40	а	111,633.60	117,228.80	123,073.60	129,188.80	135,657.60	142,417.60
Parks and Recreation	h	43.63	45.81	48.10	50.52	53.04	55.69
Services Manager	m	7,562.53	7,940.40	8,337.33	8,756.80	9,193.60	9,652.93
Grade 24	а	90,750.40	95,284.80	100,048.00	105,081.60	110,323.20	115,835.20
Parks Supervisor	h	32.86	34.50	36.21	38.03	39.94	41.94
	m	5,695.73	5,980.00	6,276.40	6,591.87	6,922.93	7,269.60
Grade 16	а	68,348.80	71,760.00	75,316.80	79,102.40	83,075.20	87,235.20
Permit Technician	h	29.62	31.11	32.67	34.30	36.02	37.82
	m	5,134.13	5,392.40	5,662.80	5,945.33	6,243.47	6,555.47
Grade 12	а	61,609.60	64,708.80	67,953.60	71,344.00	74,921.60	78,665.60
Planning Manager	h	57.41	60.28	63.30	66.47	69.78	73.28
	m	9,951.07	10,448.53	10,972.00	11,521.47	12,095.20	12,701.87
Grade 41	а	119,412.80	125,382.40	131,664.00	138,257.60	145,142.40	152,422.40
Principal Planner	h	47.25	49.61	52.08	54.67	57.41	60.28
	m	8,190.00	8,599.07	9,027.20	9,476.13	9,951.07	10,448.53
Grade 39	а	98,280.00	103,188.80	108,326.40	113,713.60	119,412.80	125,382.40
Sanitary Superintendent	h	43.63	45.81	48.10	50.52	53.04	55.69
	m	7,562.53	7,940.40	8,337.33	8,756.80	9,193.60	9,652.93
Grade 24	а	90,750.40	95,284.80	100,048.00	105,081.60	110,323.20	115,835.20
Senior Civil Engineer	h	47.25	49.61	52.08	54.67	57.41	60.28
	m	8,190.00	8,599.07	9,027.20	9,476.13	9,951.07	10,448.53
Grade 25	а	98,280.00	103,188.80	108,326.40	113,713.60	119,412.80	125,382.40
Senior Management Analyst	h	43.63	45.81	48.10	50.52	53.04	55.69
	m	7,562.53	7,940.40	8,337.33	8,756.80	9,193.60	9,652.93
Grade 24	а	90,750.40	95,284.80	100,048.00	105,081.60	110,323.20	115,835.20
Senior Planner	h	40.92	42.96	45.12	47.36	49.74	52.23
	m	7,092.80	7,446.40	7,820.80	8,209.07	8,621.60	9,053.20
Grade 23	а	85,113.60	89,356.80	93,849.60	98,508.80	103,459.20	108,638.40

City of Coachella - Salary Schedule Confidential Mid-Management Employees July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2020

							"0"
Position Title	Step	Α	В	С	D	Е	Performance Step (5%)
Streets Supervisor	h	31.39	32.95	34.59	36.33	38.15	40.06
	m	5,440.93	5,711.33	5,995.60	6,297.20	6,612.67	6,943.73
Grade 30	а	65,291.20	68,536.00	71,947.20	75,566.40	79,352.00	83,324.80
Streets Superintendent/	h	41.14	43.20	45.36	47.63	50.02	52.51
Emergency Services Coord.	m	7,130.93	7,488.00	7,862.40	8,255.87	8,670.13	9,101.73
Grade 33	а	85,571.20	89,856.00	94,348.80	99,070.40	104,041.60	109,220.80
Water Superintendent	h	43.63	45.81	48.10	50.52	53.04	55.69
	m	7,562.53	7,940.40	8,337.33	8,756.80	9,193.60	9,652.93
Grade 24	а	90,750.40	95,284.80	100,048.00	105,081.60	110,323.20	115,835.20

City of Coachella - Salary Schedule Confidential Mid-Management Employees July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021

							"0"
Position Title	Step	Α	В	С	D	Е	Performance Step (5%)
Accounting Manager	h	49.73	52.21	54.82	57.54	60.41	63.45
	m	8,619.87	9,049.73	9,502.13	9,973.60	10,471.07	10,998.00
Grade 37	а	103,438.40	108,596.80	114,025.60	119,683.20	125,652.80	131,976.00
Administrative Assistant	h	30.09	31.60	33.19	34.83	36.58	38.41
	m	5,215.60	5,477.33	5,752.93	6,037.20	6,340.53	6,657.73
Grade 10	а	62,587.20	65,728.00	69,035.20	72,446.40	76,086.40	79,892.80
Assistant to the City	h	49.58	52.06	54.65	57.37	60.25	63.25
Manager	а	8,593.87	9,023.73	9,472.67	9,944.13	10,443.33	10,963.33
Grade 36	m	103,126.40	108,284.80	113,672.00	119,329.60	125,320.00	131,560.00
Associate Planner	h	38.57	40.49	42.50	44.64	46.85	49.19
	m	6,685.47	7,018.27	7,366.67	7,737.60	8,120.67	8,526.27
Grade 32	а	80,225.60	84,219.20	88,400.00	92,851.20	97,448.00	102,315.20
Building Official	h	49.14	51.59	54.16	56.86	59.71	62.69
	m	8,517.60	8,942.27	9,387.73	9,855.73	10,349.73	10,866.27
Grade 25	а	102,211.20	107,307.20	112,652.80	118,268.80	124,196.80	130,395.20
Chief Treatment/Collections	h	39.95	41.94	44.05	46.25	48.57	51.00
System Operator	m	6,924.67	7,269.60	7,635.33	8,016.67	8,418.80	8,840.00
Grade 29	а	83,096.00	87,235.20	91,624.00	96,200.00	101,025.60	106,080.00
Civil Engineering	h	38.02	39.90	41.89	44.00	46.19	48.48
Associate	m	6,590.13	6,916.00	7,260.93	7,626.67	8,006.27	8,403.20
Grade 31	а	79,081.60	82,992.00	87,131.20	91,520.00	96,075.20	100,838.40
Code Compliance	h	49.14	51.59	54.16	56.86	59.71	62.69
Manager	m	8,517.60	8,942.27	9,387.73	9,855.73	10,349.73	10,866.27
Grade 25	а	102,211.20	107,307.20	112,652.80	118,268.80	124,196.80	130,395.20
Community Development	h	33.21	34.86	36.62	38.44	40.37	42.39
Technician	m	5,756.40	6,042.40	6,347.47	6,662.93	6,997.47	7,347.60
Grade 17	а	69,076.80	72,508.80	76,169.60	79,955.20	83,969.60	88,171.20
Community Services	h	30.09	31.60	33.19	34.83	36.58	38.41
Coordinator	m	5,215.60	5,477.33	5,752.93	6,037.20	6,340.53	6,657.73
Grade 10	а	62,587.20	65,728.00	69,035.20	72,446.40	76,086.40	79,892.80
Deputy City Clerk	h	37.46	39.33	41.30	43.36	45.53	47.82
	m	6,493.07	6,817.20	7,158.67	7,515.73	7,891.87	8,288.80
Grade 22	а	77,916.80	81,806.40	85,904.00	90,188.80	94,702.40	99,465.60
Economic Development	h	49.97	52.47	55.09	57.82	60.73	63.76
Manager	m	8,661.47	9,094.80	9,548.93	10,022.13	10,526.53	11,051.73
Grade 38	а	103,937.60	109,137.60	114,587.20	120,265.60	126,318.40	132,620.80

City of Coachella - Salary Schedule Confidential Mid-Management Employees July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021

							"O" Performance
Position Title	Step	Α	В	С	D	E	Step (5%)
Environmental/Regulatory	h	38.57	40.49	42.50	44.64	46.85	49.19
Programs Manager	m	6,685.47	7,018.27	7,366.67	7,737.60	8,120.67	8,526.27
Grade 32	а	80,225.60	84,219.20	88,400.00	92,851.20	97,448.00	102,315.20
Executive Assistant	h	33.21	34.86	36.62	38.44	40.37	42.39
	m	5,756.40	6,042.40	6,347.47	6,662.93	6,997.47	7,347.60
Grade 17	а	69,076.80	72,508.80	76,169.60	79,955.20	83,969.60	88,171.20
Finance Services	h	37.46	39.33	41.30	43.36	45.53	47.82
Supervisor	m	6,493.07	6,817.20	7,158.67	7,515.73	7,891.87	8,288.80
Grade 34	а	77,916.80	81,806.40	85,904.00	90,188.80	94,702.40	99,465.60
Grants Manager	h	45.38	47.64	50.02	52.54	55.16	57.92
	m	7,865.87	8,257.60	8,670.13	9,106.93	9,561.07	10,039.47
Grade 24	а	94,390.40	99,091.20	104,041.60	109,283.20	114,732.80	120,473.60
Information Technology	h	55.82	58.61	61.54	64.59	67.83	71.21
Manager	m	9,675.47	10,159.07	10,666.93	11,195.60	11,679.20	12,343.07
Grade 40	а	116,105.60	121,908.80	128,003.20	134,347.20	140,150.40	148,116.80
Parks and Recreation	h	45.38	47.64	50.02	52.54	55.16	57.92
Services Manager	m	7,865.87	8,257.60	8,670.13	9,106.93	9,561.07	10,039.47
Grade 24	а	94,390.40	99,091.20	104,041.60	109,283.20	114,732.80	120,473.60
Parks Supervisor	h	34.17	35.88	37.66	39.55	41.54	43.62
	m	5,922.80	6,219.20	6,527.73	6,855.33	7,200.27	7,221.07
Grade 16	а	71,073.60	74,630.40	78,332.80	82,264.00	86,403.20	86,652.80
Permit Technician	h	30.80	32.35	33.98	35.67	37.46	39.33
	m	5,338.67	5,607.33	5,889.87	6,182.80	6,493.07	6,817.20
Grade 12	а	64,064.00	67,288.00	70,678.40	74,193.60	77,916.80	81,806.40
Planning Manager	h	59.71	62.69	65.83	69.13	72.57	76.21
	m	10,349.73	10,866.27	11,410.53	11,982.53	12,578.80	13,209.73
Grade 41	а	124,196.80	130,395.20	136,926.40	143,790.40	150,945.60	158,516.80
Principal Planner	h	49.14	51.59	54.16	56.86	59.71	62.69
	m	8,517.60	8,942.27	9,387.73	9,855.73	10,349.73	10,866.27
Grade 39	а	102,211.20	107,307.20	112,652.80	118,268.80	124,196.80	130,395.20
Sanitary Superintendent	h	45.38	47.64	50.02	52.54	55.16	57.92
	m	7,865.87	8,257.60	8,670.13	9,106.93	9,561.07	10,039.47
Grade 24	а	94,390.40	99,091.20	104,041.60	109,283.20	114,732.80	120,473.60
Senior Civil Engineer	h	49.14	51.59	54.16	56.86	59.71	62.69
	m	8,517.60	8,942.27	9,387.73	9,855.73	10,349.73	10,866.27
Grade 25	а	102,211.20	107,307.20	112,652.80	118,268.80	124,196.80	130,395.20

City of Coachella - Salary Schedule Confidential Mid-Management Employees July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021

							"0"
Position Title	Step	Α	В	С	D	E	Performance Step (5%)
Senior Management	h	45.38	47.64	50.02	52.54	55.16	57.92
Analyst	m	7,865.87	8,257.60	8,670.13	9,106.93	9,561.07	10,039.47
Grade 24	а	94,390.40	99,091.20	104,041.60	109,283.20	114,732.80	120,473.60
Senior Planner	h	42.56	44.68	46.92	49.25	51.73	54.32
	m	7,377.07	7,744.53	8,132.80	8,536.67	8,966.53	9,415.47
Grade 23	а	88,524.80	92,934.40	97,593.60	102,440.00	107,598.40	112,985.60
Streets Supervisor	h	32.65	34.27	35.97	37.78	39.68	41.66
	m	5,659.33	5,940.13	6,234.80	6,548.53	6,877.87	7,221.07
Grade 30	а	67,912.00	71,281.60	74,817.60	78,582.40	82,534.40	86,652.80
Streets Superintendent/	h	42.79	44.93	47.17	49.54	52.02	54.61
Emergency Svcs. Coord.	m	7,416.93	7,787.87	8,176.13	8,586.93	9,016.80	9,465.73
Grade 33	а	89,003.20	93,454.40	98,113.60	103,043.20	108,201.60	113,588.80
Water Superintendent	h	45.38	47.64	50.02	52.54	55.16	57.92
	m	7,865.87	8,257.60	8,670.13	9,106.93	9,561.07	10,039.47
Grade 24	а	94,390.40	99,091.20	104,041.60	109,283.20	114,732.80	120,473.60

Printed for the Members by Teamsters Local 1932 433 North Sierra Way, San Bernardino, CA 92410 ~ (909) 889-8377

"WEINGARTEN RIGHTS"

An employee who reasonably believes that an investigatory interview could lead to discipline is entitled to ask for union representation. An investigatory interview is a meeting with management at which the employee will be questioned or asked to explain his or her conduct, and which could lead to disciplinary action against the employee. The employee must affirmatively request union representation.